

#### **Durham Catholic District School Board**

MINUTES of the <u>OPEN SESSION</u> of the <u>DURHAM CATHOLIC PARENT</u>
<u>INVOLVEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING</u> of the Durham Catholic District School Board which was held at Catholic Education Centre, North & South Boardroom, 650 Rossland Road West, Oshawa, on **Thursday**, **June 9, 2016**.

#### **Committee Members Staff Present** Regrets Trevor Aitchison Karolina Baker Rosemary Leclair Kim Beatty Bibi Ali Lorrie MacIntosh Melissa Bevan Chris Szent-Ivany Tom Brennan Dominic Pullano Theresa Corless - Chair Tricia Chapman - Trustee Jon Clancy, Vice-Chair of the Board Richard Damianopoulos Rose LoPresti Christina Dodds - Electronically Susie Lee-Fernandes Linda Dodson Trchala - Chair Ken Lyons Melanie O'Neil Sandy Freake Erin Groat Kim Kehoe Joni MacLean Amanda Roffey Rodney Romain Josephine-Dora Spitale

### **CALL TO ORDER**

#### <u>Item a.1</u> <u>OPENING PRAYER</u>

J. MacLean offered the offered the opening prayer.

# Item a.2 WELCOME AND COURTESIES

L. Dodson Trchala called the meeting to order at 7:11 p.m. and welcomed all committee members to the June 7, 2016 meeting.

#### **APPROVAL OF AGENDA**

#### <u>Item b.1</u> <u>APPROVAL OF AGENDA</u>

#### Motion No. DCPIC2016-06-07-01 Approval of Agenda

Moved by J. Clancy, seconded by T. Brennan

"THAT the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee approve the June 7, 2016 Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee Meeting Agenda."

#### Carried

#### **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

The next Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee meeting will be held Thursday, September 8, 2016.

#### **ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN**

Item d.1

APPROVAL AND SIGNING OF THE MINUTES OF THE OPEN SESSION OF THE DURHAM CATHOLIC PARENT INVOLVEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING OF MAY12, 2016

#### Motion No. DCPIC2016-06-07-02 Approval of Minutes

Moved by K. Kehoe, seconded by J. Dora-Spitale

"THAT the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee approve the Minutes of the May 12, 2016 Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee Meeting."

#### Carried

#### <u>Item d.2</u> <u>APPROVAL OF DCPIC BY-LAWS</u>

#### Motion No. DCPIC2016-06-07-03 Approval of DCPIC By-Laws

Moved by R. Daminioupolus , seconded by S. Kehoe

"THAT the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee approve The DCPIC By-Laws amended June 9, 2016 as submitted."

#### Carried

•

### <u>Item d.3</u> <u>COMMUNITY RESPRESENTATIVES TERM EXTENSION</u>

# Motion No. DCPIC2016-06-07-04 Approval of Extending The Term for the Community Representatives

Moved by J. Clancy, seconded by R. Damianopolous

"THAT the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee approve an extension of the term for Community Representatives until October 2016."

#### Carried

#### Item d.4 STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION

Chair Dodson Trchala will send the committee possible dates and request venue/activity suggestions for the Strategic Planning Session in August.

#### <u>Item d.5</u> <u>APPROVAL OF ATTENDANCE REPORT 2015-2016</u>

# Motion No. DCPIC2016-06-07-06 Approval of Attendance Report for 2015-2016

Moved K. Kehoe, seconded by R. Romain

"THAT the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee receive and file the Attendance Report for 2015-2016 as amended."

#### Carried

#### **PRESENTATION**

Nil.

#### REPORTS/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

#### Item f.1.1 CHAIR REPORT

Chair Dodson Trchala thanked everyone for their support and she enjoyed working with all of DCPIC committee members as we have done so many great things. She announced that Paulette Palumbo and Joanie Maclean have resigned their positions on the DCPIC committee.

### Item f.1.2 TRUSTEE REPORT

Trustee Chapman followed up with the committee on the Board's Whitby Secondary Schools Study Community Consultation meeting that was held May 31, 2016 at All Saints CSS. The Catholic Student Senate initiated the naming of the conference centre as the Pope Francis Centre and a retreat day has been planned for June 14, 2016 for all the 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 student councils in our secondary schools.

#### Item f.1.3 RESOURCE REPORT

Superintendent Leclair offered her thanks to all of the members of the DCPIC for their service, particularly Chair Dodson Trchala and Lorrie MacIntosh for her support of the committee and their activities. She highlighted that the Witness Walk of Faith Cross will make its way to its final destination at the Catholic Education Centre on June 23, 2016 at the year-end Mass. The year of *Witness* concludes and plans are underway to celebrate the New Evangelization theme of *Community*. The Brooklin Spring Fair was a great success on June 12<sup>th</sup>. All are welcome to join the Oshawa Family of Schools group participating in the Father's Day Fiesta Week Parade on Sunday, June 19<sup>th</sup> (meeting at 10:30 a.m. at the Oshawa City Hall parking lot). The Conference Centre has been named the Pope Francis Centre, an initiative of the Student Senate, with the official blessing on Monday, June 13<sup>th</sup>. Lastly, an upcoming community consultation session is being held June 15<sup>th</sup> on community hubs/partnerships at 6:00 p.m. at the Conference Centre, all are welcome.

# Item f.1.4 PRO GRANT SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT

K. Baker confirmed two dates for the PRO Grant initiative next year. The DCPIC Symposium will be held on Feb. 11th at All Saints CSS. An Social Media Safety presentation for parents will be held April 20th and venue will be confirmed shortly. We will move forward accordingly in October.

# Item f.1.5 COMMUNICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT

Deferred.

# Item f.1.6 SCHOOL COUNCIL OUTREACH SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT

Deferred.

# Item f.1.7 FAITH FORMATION SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT

Deferred.

### Item f.1.8 POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT

R. Damianopoulos shared that the committee had their final meeting for the school year and that the majority of the meetings were conducted via Webex. He thanked the committee for all their support and discussion. It was a very successful year as a template was designed for policy review and the revised DCPIC By-laws were approved.

#### Item f.1.9 BUDGET SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT

The budget report has been deferred to the Strategic Planning Workshop in August.

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

The DCPIC meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. J. MacLean offered the closing prayer.

# Motion No. DCPIC2016-05-12-05 Adjournment

Moved by J. MacLean, seconded by T. Brennan

"THAT the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee meeting of Thursday, June 9, 2016, adjourn."

Carried

Linda Dodson Trchala Chair, Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee

Rosemary Leclair Superintendent of Education



"DCPIC"

**By-Laws** 

Revised June 9, 2016

# **Table of Contents**

Name	3
Affiliation	3
Mandate and Responsibilities of the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee	3
Membership	4
Election and Selection of DCPIC Membership	5
Parent Members Elections	5
First Election/Selection/Term of Office	6
Community Members - Selection/Term of Office	7
Non-Mandatory Members - Selection/Term of Office	7
Vacancies	7
Officers	8
Duties of DCPIC Officers	8
Meetings	10
Schedule of Meetings	10
Mandatory Attendance and Quorum	10
Notice of Meetings	10
Items for the Agenda	10
Attendance at Meetings	10
Minutes of Meetings	11
Making Decisions	11
Financial Records/Reporting/Budgeting	11
Remuneration	12
Annual Summary of Activities	12
By-Laws	13
Sub-Committees of the DCPIC	13
Conflict of Interest	13
Confidentiality and Privacy	14
Conflict Resolution	
Roberts Rules/Simplified Rules of Order	15
Sources	
dix 1	
dix 2	18
	Affiliation  Mandate and Responsibilities of the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee  Membership  Election and Selection of DCPIC Membership  Parent Members Elections  First Election/Selection/Term of Office  Community Members - Selection/Term of Office  Non-Mandatory Members - Selection/Term of Office  Vacancies  Officers  Duties of DCPIC Officers  Meetings  Schedule of Meetings  Mandatory Attendance and Quorum  Notice of Meetings  Items for the Agenda  Attendance at Meetings  Minutes of Meetings  Making Decisions  Financial Records/Reporting/Budgeting  Remuneration  Annual Summary of Activities  By-Laws  Sub-Committees of the DCPIC  Conflict of Interest  Conflict Resolution  Roberts Rules/Simplified Rules of Order  Sources

#### **Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee**

"DCPIC"

# **By-Laws**

#### Revised June 9, 2016

#### 1.0 Name

1.1 The organization shall be known as the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee, herein referred to as the "DCPIC".

#### 2.0 Affiliation

- 2.1 The DCPIC is a statutory committee of the Durham Catholic District School Board (the Board) and is subject to the Board General Working By-law regarding the operation of committees.
- 2.2 The DCPIC may from time to time be affiliated with organizations, groups and agencies which promote the goals and objectives of the DCPIC.

#### 3.0 Mandate and Responsibilities of the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee

- 3.1 In accordance with Ministry of Education ("Ministry") direction, the mandate of the DCPIC is to:
  - support, encourage, and enhance meaningful parent engagement at the board level
  - to improve student achievement and well-being;
  - provide information and advice to the board on parent engagement;
  - communicate with and support local Catholic school councils in the Durham Catholic District School Board;
  - undertake activities to help parents support their children's learning at home and at school.
- 3.2 The responsibilities of the DCPIC are:
  - to develop strategies and initiatives that the board and the board's Director could use to communicate effectively with parents and to engage parents in support of their children's learning at home and at school, and to advise on the use of these strategies;
  - to communicate information from the ministry to local Catholic School Councils and parents;
  - to determine, in consultation with the director of education, how ministry funding, if any, for parent engagement initiatives is to be allocated;

- to work with local Catholic School Councils:
- to share effective practices to help engage parents in their children's learning, identify and reduce barriers to parent engagement, and help ensure that schools are welcoming to parents;
- to support initiatives that help build knowledge and skills that will assist the PIC and school councils of the board with their work.
- 3.3 The DCPIC, as the Durham Catholic District School Board committee for enhancing parent involvement, shall at all times promote the best interest of Catholic education locally and provincially and provide input to the Board and to the Ministry of Education on such issues as policy development and direction, and those issues impacting parent engagement at the school and board level.
- 3.4 In addition the DCPIC will:
  - establish goals and priorities;
  - engage with its' membership and community stakeholders regularly;
  - hold regularly scheduled and additional meetings as required.

### 4.0 Membership

- 4.1 Parents shall form the majority of membership on the DCPIC.
- 4.2 Membership of the Durham Catholic Parent Involvement Committee shall consist of:
  - Parent Members Up to 16 which will include the officers of the DCPIC
  - Community Members Up to 3
  - 1 Trustee or Designate
  - Director or Designate Supervisory Officer
  - School Principals to a maximum of 1 Elementary and 1 Secondary school principal
  - Teaching Staff to a maximum of 1 Elementary and 1 Secondary school teacher
  - 1 Non-Teaching Employee of the Board
- 4.3 **Parent Members** are mandatory voting members and must be the Catholic parent of a pupil enrolled in a school of the Board. Employees of the board may serve as Parent Members and must inform the committee of their employment at the first committee meeting they attend. Parent Members are selected in accordance with the process outlined in Section 5.1 Parent Member Elections.
- 4.4 **Community Member** is a mandatory voting member, who is Catholic and cannot be a board member or an employee of the Board that the DCPIC serves. The Community Member is not eligible to vote for the Officers of the DCPIC. The

- Community Member is selected in accordance with the process outlined in Section 5.3 Community Members Selection/Term of Office
- 4.5 **Trustee** is a mandatory non-voting member of the DCPIC. The trustee may delegate any of his or her powers or duties as a member of the DPIC to another member of the board and may designate a fellow trustee to attend a DCPIC meeting in his or her place.
- 4.6 **Director of Education** is a mandatory non-voting member of the DCPIC. The Director may delegate any of his or her powers or duties as a member of the DCPIC to a Supervisory Officer of the board and may designate the Supervisory Officer to attend a DCPIC meeting in his or her place. The Director of Education or Designated Supervisory Officer shall serve as Resource to the DCPIC and Recording Secretary as is the practice of the Board.
- 4.7 **School Principals** are non-voting members of the DCPIC. They are selected by the Board in accordance with the process outlined in Section 5.4 Non-Mandatory Members Selection/Term of Office
- 4.8 **Teaching Staff** are non-voting members of the DCPIC. They are selected by the Board in accordance with the process outlined in Section 5.4 Non-Mandatory Members Selection/Term of Office
- 4.9 Non-Teaching Staff are non-voting members of the DCPIC. They are selected by the Board in accordance with the process outlined in Section 5.4 Non-Mandatory Members — Selection/Term of Office

#### 5.0 Election and Selection of DCPIC Membership

#### 5.1 Parent Members Elections

- 5.1.1 A Nominations Committee, consisting of at least 3 members of the DCPIC, who are not seeking re-election in that year, shall be appointed by the DCPIC no later than May 1st annually. The Director of Education or Designated Supervisory Officer shall act as a resource to the Nominations Committee.
- 5.1.2 A Committee Chair shall be elected from within the Nominations Committee at a meeting to be held by May 15th annually.
- 5.1.3 The Chair of the Nominations Committee shall issue a call annually for nominations by May 30th for those positions on the DCPIC that are available for election effective the next operating year of the DCPIC. Methods of advertising available DCPIC positions may include:
  - Board and school websites
  - School newsletters
  - DCPIC communications
  - Parish Bulletins
  - Local media

- 5.1.4 Nominations for DCPIC positions shall be for and from the membership as defined in Section 4.3 Parent Members.
- 5.1.5 All nominations for a slate of candidates shall be received by the Chair of the Nominations Committee on or before September 1st annually and presented to the DCPIC at its September meeting.
- 5.1.6 By September 15th annually, a notice of elections shall be issued to all Catholic School Councils.
- 5.1.7 The annual elections of the DCPIC shall be held prior to October 31st. Elections will be conducted by the Director or Designated Supervisory Officer.
- 5.1.8 Should the number of nominees on the slate exceed the number of available positions, an election will be conducted.
- 5.1.9 Should the number of nominees on the slate be equal to the number of available positions, the nominees shall be acclaimed, unless a majority of eligible voters present decide, by motion, to allow nominations from the floor.
- 5.1.10 Should the number of nominees be less than the number of available positions, the nominees shall be acclaimed and nominations from the floor will be accepted to fill the remaining available positions, unless a majority of eligible voters present decide, by motion, to conduct an election for all positions.
- 5.1.11 Nominee(s) from the floor is/are eligible for election provided they qualify under section 4.3 Parent Members and are prepared, at the election meeting, to provide the appropriate information requested of all candidates.
- 5.1.12 Elections, if required, shall be conducted in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order, by secret ballot. The persons receiving the most votes for the number of vacant positions available shall be declared the successful candidates.
- 5.1.13 Newly elected Parent Members shall assume office at the first meeting of the DCPIC and no later than November 15th.

#### 5.2 First Election/Selection/Term of Office

5.2.1 For the first elections conducted under this bylaw, half of the Parent Members shall be elected for a term of one year and half shall be elected for a term of two years. Determination of these terms will be first, based on the outcome of officer elections, second, a discussion with the nominees regarding their personal preference and third, by random draw. Thereafter Parent Members will be elected for a two year term.

5.2.2 The process for selecting Community Members, Principal, Teaching Staff, and Non-Teaching Staff shall be conducted as soon as possible after the first election.

#### 5.3 Community Members - Selection/Term of Office

- 5.3.1 Nominees for the position of Community Member shall be identified using the process described in Sections 5.1.1 through 5.1.3
- 5.3.2 The Nomination Committee may require candidates for the position of Community Member to participate in an interview to assess their suitability for the position.
- 5.3.3 Nominees will be required to submit to the Chair of the Nominations Committee:
  - a. a letter indicating their interest in the position of Community Member, their reasons for applying and their interest in the Durham Catholic District School Board and Catholic education.
  - b. if the nominee is not known to members of the committee, a resume outlining relevant experience will be required.
- 5.3.4 The Nominations Committee will provide a report to the DCPIC at the September meeting with a recommended slate of up to 3 appropriate Community Member nominees for approval.
- 5.3.5 The Community Members shall serve a term of one year and will be eligible to serve a maximum of four one year terms, upon DCPIC's annual approval of the renewal of their appointment.

#### 5.4 Non-Mandatory Members - Selection/Term of Office

- 5.4.1 School Principals A principal or principals shall be nominated by the Durham Catholic Principals' Association for appointment by DCPIC.
- 5.4.2 Teaching Staff Member— A teacher or teachers shall be nominated by OECTA for appointment by DCPIC.
- 5.4.3 Non-Teaching Staff Member— The Board shall advertise the position to all non-teaching staff and shall appoint a representative from the applicants.
- 5.4.4 Non-Mandatory Members shall serve a one year term.

#### 5.5 Vacancies

- 5.5.1 Should a Parent Member position become vacant before the next selection process, the DCPIC shall fill the vacancy by appointment from the pool of candidates from the previous election process.
- 5.5.2 If none of these candidates remain interested in becoming a DCPIC member, the DCPIC may request that interested and eligible parents of

- the Board submit their names for consideration. The committee shall then appoint one of those who indicate an interest.
- 5.5.3 When a vacant spot on the committee is filled, the new member's term shall expire at the time the previous member's term would have ended.

#### 6.0 Officers

6.1 The following positions shall constitute the officers of the DCPIC and their positions shall be duly elected for the designated term of office.

Position	Term
Chair	2 years
Vice Chair	2 years
Secretary	2 years
Past Chair (Only if they are still a Parent Member	

- 6.2 The officers of the DCPIC shall be elected by the Parent Members of the DCPIC only and shall serve a term of two years. At the end of each term, positions are open for election by the DCPIC Parent Members.
- 6.3 The Chair may not serve more than two consecutive terms as Chair of the DCPIC.
- 6.4 An individual who has served two consecutive terms as Chair may be re-elected as Chair provided at least one two-year term has elapsed since his/her last term as Chair.

#### 7.0 Duties of DCPIC Officers

- 7.1 All DCPIC Officers shall ensure that Catholic values are central to the work of the DCPIC.
- 7.2 The Chair shall:
  - act as a link between the DCPIC and local Catholic School Councils and encourage their participation;
  - call meetings;
  - set the agenda prior to each meeting:
  - chair meetings;
  - represent the DCPIC at official functions or shall assign a designate;
  - ensure that there is regular communication with individuals within the DCPIC;
  - encourage representation, as requested, on Board committees;
  - appoint members to sub-committees with the approval of the DCPIC;
  - shall be responsible for official DCPIC communications;

 facilitate the completion of the Annual Summary of DCPIC Activities supported by the Resource to the DCPIC (Designated Supervisory Officer).

#### 7.3 The Vice-Chair shall:

- act as a link between the DCPIC and Catholic School Councils and encourage their participation;
- assist the Chair in his/her duties;
- assist DCPIC members, if required;
- in the absence of the Chair, preside at DCPIC meetings and official functions;
- upon the resignation of the Chair, assume the position of the Chair for the unexpired term.

#### 7.4 The Secretary shall:

- act as a link between the DCPIC and Catholic School Councils and encourage their participation;
- assist the Director/Designated Supervisory Officer in his/her role of Recording Secretary
- maintain accurate membership lists and update them as necessary;
- record attendance at DCPIC meetings and maintain such records on behalf of the DCPIC;
- assist in the preparation of DCPIC Communications.

#### 7.5 The Past Chair shall:

- act as a link between the DCPIC and Catholic School Councils and encourage their participation;
- extend the benefit of his/her experience to the Chair and other members of the DCPIC and act in an advisory capacity.

#### 7.6 The Parent Members shall:

- act as a link between the DCPIC and Catholic School Councils and encourage their participation;
- provide advice from the parental perspective on matters under consideration by the DCPIC;
- perform such duties assigned to them by the Chair of the DCPIC including, but not limited to, liaising with Families of Schools and assuming the directorship of outside organizations such as the Ontario Association of Parents in Catholic Education (OAPCE).

#### 7.7 The Community Members shall:

- Provide advice from the perspective of the broader community and/or the specific constituency designated by the DCPIC in the selection process (eg. Parish Priest representative of the Catholic parish zone).
- 7.8 Principal/Teaching Staff/Non-Teaching Staff shall:
  - Provide advice from the perspective of their specific constituencies.

#### 8.0 Meetings

#### 8.1 Schedule of Meetings

- 8.1.1 The DCPIC shall set and publish a schedule of Meetings annually as part of the Board's annual determination of meeting dates.
- 8.1.2 A minimum of six DCPIC meetings shall be scheduled per school year.

#### 8.2 Mandatory Attendance and Quorum

- 8.2.1 The chair will be required to reschedule the meeting if any one of the following occurs:
  - a. fewer than 8 parents are present;
  - b. the Director of Education (or designate) is not present;
  - c. the Trustee (or designate) is not present.
- 8.2.3 In the event of a lack of quorum, a meeting may be held but no binding votes shall be taken.

#### 8.3 Notice of Meetings

- 8.3.1 In accordance with Ministry regulation, notice of DCPIC meetings will be made available by the Chair to DCPIC members at least five days before the meeting by email and by posting on the Board's website.
- 8.3.2 All meetings shall be open to the public.

#### 8.4 Items for the Agenda

- 8.4.1 DCPIC Members will submit agenda items to the Chair seven days prior to the meeting.
- 8.4.2 No item shall be placed on the agenda unless it is within the mandate of the DCPIC, as determined by the Chair.
- 8.4.3 Agenda items can only be added after the deadline if the DCPIC deems by majority vote that the item is within the mandate of the DCPIC and is sufficiently urgent and requires immediate action.

#### 8.5 Attendance at Meetings

8.5.1 Unless prevented for a reason beyond his/her reasonable control, all members shall attend all meetings of the DCPIC

- 8.5.2 Where a member will not be present, the member will notify the Chair and/or the Designated Supervisory Officer.
- 8.5.3 Members must attend at least three meetings in person.
- 8.5.4 Where a member has been absent for three meetings without notification, he/she is deemed as absentee and DCPIC Chair/Officer's may choose to fill their position.
- 8.5.5 Where a member is unable to attend a DCPIC or sub-committee meeting in person for reasons beyond their control, they may attend by teleconference or other authorized electronic means.

#### 8.6 Minutes of Meetings

- 8.6.1 Minutes of meetings will be completed by the Recording Secretary of the DCPIC (i.e. Designated Supervisory Officer).
- 8.6.2 Minutes of the previous meeting shall be included with the agenda sent to DCPIC Members.
- 8.6.3 Minutes of the DCPIC Meetings will be posted on the Board's website.
- 8.6.4 Minutes of DCPIC Meetings and records of financial records shall be available to the public for four years posted on the Board website.
- 8.6.5 Minutes posted on the website of the Board shall remain on the website for four years.

#### 8.7 Making Decisions

- 8.7.1 It is understood that the preferred method of making decisions is by consensus.
- 8.7.2 Consensus decisions must be formalized by a motion for approval by a vote.
- 8.7.3 Where a reasonable effort to achieve consensus has been made but is still not possible, voting will used.
- 8.7.4 Only Parent Members and the Community Members are permitted to vote (with the exception of the election of Officers, where only the Parent Members are allowed to vote.)
- 8.7.5 All votes shall be duly moved and seconded.
- 8.7.6 Motions shall pass by virtue of a simple majority of eligible voters as defined in Section 8.7.4.

#### 9.0 Financial Records/Reporting/Budgeting

9.1 The DCPIC must maintain records of its financial transactions, which will be available at the Board office for four years.

- 9.2 These records will be maintained in accordance with Board accounting policies and procedures.
- 9.3 The Director/Designated Supervisory Officer will provide a summary update of the DCPIC financial transactions on a school year quarterly basis.
- 9.4 A Budget Committee, consisting of the Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary and the Designated Supervisory Officer, shall prepare an estimated budget for the October DCPIC Meeting.

#### 10.0 Remuneration

- 10.1 A person shall not receive any remuneration for serving as a member of the DCPIC.
- 10.2 The Board shall reimburse members of the DCPIC for reasonable expenses incurred as members of the DCPIC in accordance with Board policies and procedures.
- 10.3 Requests for reimbursement of expenses shall be submitted to the office of the Designated Supervisory Officer.

#### 11.0 Annual Summary of Activities

- 11.1 Each year, the DCPIC shall submit a written annual summary of DCPIC activities to the Chair of the Board and Director of Education.
- 11.2 The Annual Summary shall include:
- 11.2.1 A list the names and positions of all DCPIC members and officers, and the appropriate group they represent (e.g., officers; Parent Members and the area they represent, if applicable; community members and the group they represent; board employee group members and their affiliation).
- 11.2.2 Acknowledgement of the efforts and commitment of DCPIC members.
- 11.2.3 Dates of the year's DCPIC meetings, as well as any available information on upcoming meetings.
- 11.2.4 Summary of the activities of the DCPIC under the following headings:
  - a. Summary of information and advice given to the Board
  - Summary of strategies and initiatives developed that the Board could use to
    effectively communicate with parents and to engage parents to support their
    children's learning at home and at school
  - c. Information communicated to school councils and parents
  - d. Support provided for school councils
- 11.2.5 A financial statement (a description of how funding, if any, provided by the Ministry for parent involvement was spent) must be included.

#### 12.0 By-Laws

- 12.1 In accordance with Board By-laws, the terms of reference for a statutory committee of the Board, including the DCPIC, shall be as prescribed in the Education Act and Regulation 612/00 made under that Act.
- 12.2 In accordance with Board's General Working By-law, the Board in its discretion may, from time to time, amend the operating procedures of Board Committees including the DCPIC.
- 12.3 The DCPIC may amend its By-law from time to time by a two thirds majority of parent and community members.
- 12.4 All amendments to this By-law will be considered first by the By-law Sub-Committee before being recommended to the entire DCPIC.
- 12.5 A By-law Sub-Committee will review these By-laws at least every 3 years.

#### 13.0 Sub-Committees of the DCPIC

- 13.1 The DCPIC shall have the sole discretion to establish sub-committees of the DCPIC.
- 13.2 The By-law Sub-Committee and the Nominations Sub-Committee shall be Standing Committees of the DCPIC.
- 13.3 The DCPIC may establish ad hoc committees as required in accordance with its priorities.
- 13.4 All sub-committees shall operate under mandates established by the DCPIC.
- 13.5 Sub-Committees may include members who are not DCPIC members, however all sub-committees must include a least one Parent Member of the DCPIC.

#### 14.0 Conflict of Interest

- 14.1 As a committee of the Board, DCPIC is governed by the provisions of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, RSO 1990, c M.50, and for purposes of this Bylaw, a direct, indirect or deemed pecuniary interest shall have the meaning as defined in the Act.
- 14.2 Should an issue or agenda item come before DCPIC for consideration and decision where a DCPIC member's interest conflict's with the interest of DCPIC or the Board, the member shall, in accordance with the requirements of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, immediately declare the conflict of interest and absent himself or herself from the portion of the meeting during which the matter is to be discussed
- 14.3 Any member who is unclear whether he or she has a conflict may seek the advice of the DCPIC Chair and/or Director/Designate Supervisory Officer

#### 15.0 Confidentiality and Privacy

- 15.1 DCPIC members may from time to time have access to information which has been identified as confidential to the Board and/or to DCPIC.
- 15.2 Members have a duty of confidentiality with regard to such information, and shall at all times maintain the confidentiality of information so identified.
- 15.3 As a committee of the Board, DCPIC is governed by the provision so the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSO 1990, c M.56 ("MFIPP").
- 15.4 Members shall not collect, use disclose or retain personal information except in accordance with the provisions of MFIPPA.
- 15.5 Any member who seeks clarification regarding their duty of confidentiality or the collection, use, retention or disclosure of personal information may seek the advice of the DCPIC Chair, the Board's Privacy head, and/or the Direct/Designate Supervisory Officer.

#### 16.0 Conflict Resolution

- 16.1 All members of the DCPIC will comply with the DCPIC Code of Ethics (attached to the By-law as Appendix 1.
- 16.2 In accordance with the Code of Ethics, DCPIC members shall conduct themselves in a manner that recognizes that a diversity of views strengthens the work of the committee, provided that opinions are expressed in a courteous manner.
- 16.3 The Chair/Officer (Vice-Chair/Secretary) of a DCPIC meeting shall facilitate member adherence to the Code of Ethics and support respectful dialogue and constructive decision-making. The Chair may assist members by identifying points of similarity among speakers, and the joint interest and common goals of committee members.

Where appropriate, the Chair may clarify points of debate, and where differences of opinion are expressed the Chair shall encourage members to:

- i. Commit to finding a solution.
- Develop a strategy to resolve any conflict.
- iii. Listen to each person's views without judgment.
- iv. Attack the problem and not the person avoid labelling the individual.
- v. Allow each Member to communicate their views in turn as recognized by the Chair, and to speak without interruption while they have the floor.
- vi. Ask others involved about their needs and concerns.

- vii. Use active listening strategies.
- viii. Share needs and concerns with the entire group, where it could assist in conflict resolution.
- ix. Invite others to suggest ways to resolve the conflict.
- x. Support construction solutions.
- xi. Facilitate implementation of a conflict resolution outcome.
- 16.4 Where a conflict arises, DCPIC members shall make every attempt to resolve the dispute in a collaborative manner, in a spirit of mutual trust and respect, in accordance with the following process:

#### (a) Phase I

The Chair and one other Officer to be appointed by the Chair shall meet with the members directly involved in the dispute to discuss their positions

The Chair and the other Officer appointed by the Chair shall also offer other members who consider themselves affected by a dispute with the opportunity to meet and express their observations and/or concerns.

All members participating in this process shall be reminded of DCPIC's commitment to uphold the Mission, Vision and Values of the DCDSB.

Having considered the views of all those who accepted the invitation to participate in a meeting, the Chair and the other Officer shall provide the members directly involved in the dispute with their feedback and suggestions for resolution, and offer guidance as to how to proceed in the best interests of DCPIC and the Board.

#### (b) Phase II

If a dispute cannot be satisfactorily resolved using the process outlined in Phase I, the Chair may elect to request the assistance of the Director of Education and/or a Supervisory Officer of the Board, in attempting to resolve the matter.

#### (c) Phase III

In the alternative, or if the matter has not been resolved with the assistance of the Director or a Supervisory Officer of the Board, the Chair may, in consultation with the Director, seek approval of DCPIC to retain the services of an external consultant to assist with conflict resolution.

#### 17.0 Roberts Rules/Simplified Rules of Order

- 17.1 Roberts Rules: Simplified Rules of Order (Appendix 2) shall apply to the conduct of the DCPIC in matters requiring a vote, unless otherwise stipulated in these bylaws.
- 17.2 Where any other procedural issue is not addressed in this bylaw, DCPIC procedures shall be subject to the provisions of:

- 17.2.1 Education Act, Regulation 612/00
- 17.2.2 Board General Working By-law
- 17.2.3 Roberts Rules of Order

#### 18.0 Sources

- o Education Act, Regulation 612/00, Part 111— Parent Involvement Committees
- o Municipal Conflict of Interest Act
- o Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
- o Ministry of Education: Making a Difference A Practical Handbook for Parent Involvement Committee Members
- Ministry of Education: Parents in Partnership: A Parent Engagement Policy for Ontario Schools (2010)
- o Durham Catholic District School Board General Working By-Law Number 2014

#### Appendix 1

#### Member Duties & Responsibilities and Code of Ethical Conduct

# 1.0 <u>Duties & Responsibilities of Members</u>

- Observe and uphold the Committee's By-Laws and Code of Ethical Code of Conduct.
- ii. Attend all Committee meetings during the fiscal year.
- iii. Participate actively in meetings of the Committee.
- iv. Conduct themselves at Committee meetings in a professional and cordial manner in the context of the Catholic gospel values.
- v. Act as a link between the Committee and the Durham Region Community in support of programs to improve student achievement and well-being.
- vi. Participate in information and training programs.
- vii. Serve on a minimum of one (1) Subcommittee established by the Committee.

#### 2.0 Code of Ethical Conduct

- i. A Member shall ensure that the interests and well-being of DCDSB students and parents is the primary focus of all decisions.
- ii. A Member shall be guided by the Committee's Mission.
- iii. A Member shall act within the limits of the roles and responsibilities of the Committee, as noted in the Committee's By-Laws and Regulation 612/00 of the Ontario Education Act.
- iv. A Member shall promote high standards of ethical practice within the Committee.
- v. A Member shall maintain the highest standards of civil courtesy, integrity and honesty.
- vi. A Member shall recognize and respect the personal integrity of every other Member of the Committee.
- vii. A Member shall treat all other Members with respect and all for diverse opinions to be shared without interruption or discourtesy.
- viii. A Member shall encourage a positive environment in which individual contributions are encouraged and valued.
- ix. A Member shall acknowledge democratic principles and accept the consensus of the Committee.
- x. A Member shall limit discussions at Committee meetings to matters of concern to the Committee as a whole.
- xi. A Member shall use established communication channels when questions or concerns arise.
- xii. A Member shall declare any conflict of interest.
- xiii. A Member shall respect the confidential nature of some Committee business and respect limitations this may place on their individual right to free speech.
- xiv. A Member shall not disclose confidential information.

#### Appendix 2

#### Simplified Rules of Order

#### Robert's Rules: Simplified Rules of Order

If your PIC decides to make decisions formally, by majority vote, or if consensus cannot be reached and a vote is required, the following simplified rules of order may be useful:

#### 3.0 Making a Motion

- An individual must be recognized by the chair or co-chair before "obtaining the floor" to make a motion. This means that the chair or co-chair must let a person know that it is his or her turn before that person can speak to the Committee and formally propose a course of action.
- 2. Once an individual has the floor, he or she may make a formal proposal, or motion, beginning with the statement "I move that ...".
- 3. Before the motion can be considered, another individual must second the motion by saying "I second the motion".

This does not necessarily indicate that he or she agrees with the proposal, only that he or she believes that it is worthy of discussion.

- 4. Once a motion has been made and seconded, the chair or co-chair restates the motion ("states the question") so that everyone clearly understands what is being proposed. From this point on, until the motion is voted on, all discussion must focus solely on the question.
- 5. If members of the PIC wish to discuss the motion, the chair or co-chair opens debate. Each participant may speak to the question twice, but no one may speak a second time until everyone has had the chance to speak once.
- 6. If no one wants to speak further to the motion, the chair or co-chair may ask the PIC if it is ready for "the question" (ready to vote on the proposal). The chair or co-chair then repeats the motion and conducts the vote by asking for those in favour and those opposed. (The vote may be conducted by a show of hands, by standing, or by secret ballot.)
- 7. A majority is needed. In the case of a tie, the motion is defeated.

#### 3.1 Amending a Motion

Until the chair or co-chair states the question (repeats the motion) for a final vote, the person who made the motion may change it, although the original seconder may wish to withdraw. In this case, another seconder would be needed. After the question has been stated, the motion can still be amended, in one of the following ways:

- 1. The person making the motion may ask to change the original wording. The chair or co-chair will ask if anyone objects. If no one objects, the wording of the motion is changed. Debate continues on the motion as amended.
- 2. If someone does object, the question of whether to allow a change in the wording of the motion is put to a vote. If the group consents to the change, debate continues on the motion as amended.

- 3. Someone else may move to amend the motion by saying, "I move to amend the motion by ...". If so, the normal process for a motion, as outlined above in "Making a Motion", is followed.
- 4. An amendment to the amendment may also be proposed, but a third amendment is out of order and not allowed.
- 5. If the amendment is defeated, discussion returns to the original motion.

#### 3.3 WITHDRAWING A MOTION

- 1. At any time before a vote, the person making the original motion may ask to withdraw it. The motion to withdraw does not require a seconder. Once the question is withdrawn, it is as if it never existed.
- 2. If the chair or co-chair has already stated the question and a request to withdraw the motion is made by someone other than the person making the original motion, the chair or co-chair asks if there is any objection. If there is none, the motion is withdrawn. If someone objects, the request to withdraw the motion is put to a vote.

#### 3.2 TABLING A MOTION

Members can make a motion to table a motion – meaning to set it aside for discussion at another time so that more pressing business can be discussed, or so that more information about the issues can be obtained. The following rules apply to tabling a motion:

- The motion to table a motion takes precedence over the discussion of the motion.
- The motion to table a motion requires a seconder.
- There can be no debate on a motion to table.